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Professional Liability Claims Against Accountants
 Regulators
» Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (“PCAOB”)
» Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
 Enforcement actions/selected cases
 Considerations in assessing alleged claims
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PCAOB
Inspections
 PCAOB inspects registered public accounting firms to assess compliance
with the Act, the rules of the Board, the rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and professional standards.

 Required inspection
» Annually for firms that regularly provide audit reports for more than
100 issuers.
» At least triennially for firms that regularly provide audit reports for 100
or fewer issuers.
 PCAOB might also inspect any other registered firm that plays a role in the
audit of an issuer.

 PCAOB prepares written reports on each inspection.
» Provides to SEC and certain state regulatory authorities.
December 9, 2015
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PCAOB
Inspections (continued)
 Inspected firms
» As of November 2015, approximately 2,100 registered U.S. and non-U.S.
public accounting firms.
o Down 100 from 2014.
o Approximately 900 non-U.S. and foreign affiliates of U.S. firms.

» PCAOB also oversees the audits of broker-dealers, including compliance
reports filed pursuant to federal securities laws, to promote investor
protection.
» Not all registered firms perform audit work for clients that are "issuers“ or
perform audit work for clients that are securities brokers or dealers.
Accordingly, not all registered firms would be inspected.
» As of November 2015, there are approximately 590 registered firms issuing
audit reports on issuer financial statements, down from approximately 650
one year earlier and 700 two years ago.
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PCAOB
Inspections (continued)
 Approximately 2,475 inspection reports issued to date (through July 2015).
» Approximately 225 performed in the last year.
» Avg 236/yr.
 Inspection process
» Inspectors review a firm's work on numerous audits selected by the
PCAOB, without any firm influence.
» Selection of issuer audits for review is influenced by an evaluation of the
risk that issuers' financial statements could be materially misstated. This
risk might relate to:
o characteristics of the particular issuer or its industry;
o the audit issues likely to be encountered;
o firm, practice office, or individual partner-level considerations;
o prior inspection results;
o other factors.
» Inspectors evaluate the design and effectiveness of a firm's quality control
policies and procedures that could be expected to have an effect on audit
performance.
December 9, 2015
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PCAOB
Inspections (continued)
 Inspection reports may contain nonpublic content, including comments
regarding potential defects in a firm's system of quality control. Any such
quality control criticisms remain nonpublic if the firm addresses them to the
Board's satisfaction within 12 months after the report date.
 If a firm fails to satisfactorily address any of the quality control criticisms within
12 months, the portion of the report discussing the particular criticism(s) is
made publicly available.
 Audit firms may request that a statement by the firm be attached to the
release publishing the PCAOB criticisms and the Board may grant the
request. The statement typically indicates that the firm considers its actions to
be sufficient but acknowledges the PCAOB position.
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PCAOB
Enforcement
Investigations
Investigations of registered public accounting firms, their partners, and
personnel.
Required cooperation with Board investigations, including document
production and providing testimony and relevant information.
Alleged violations → hearings.
Sanctions
Designed to deter possible recurrence and enhance the quality and reliability
of future audits.
Suspension or revocation of a firm’s registration.
Suspension or bar of an individual from associating with a registered public
accounting firm.
Civil money penalties.
Requirement for improvements in a firm’s quality control, training,
independent monitoring of the audit work of a firm or individual, or other
remedial measures.
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PCAOB
Enforcement (continued)
Disciplinary Orders
 Disciplinary orders are issued as a result of disciplinary proceedings instituted
by the PCAOB.
 As required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Board’s investigations are
confidential and nonpublic. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act also requires that
disciplinary proceedings are confidential and nonpublic, unless and until there is
a final decision imposing sanctions.
 Following are selected disciplinary orders published by the PCAOB within the
last year.
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PCAOB
Recent Trends
80 Settled PCAOB Disciplinary Orders from 2011 through November 2015
Type and Number of Deficiencies
25
20
15
10
5
0
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PCAOB

Recent developments
 News Releases
» October 2015, PCAOB issued Staff Inspection Brief for 2015. Objectives and scope
will focus on some of the most common areas with significant deficiencies in recent
years.
– Auditing internal controls for financial reporting
– Assessing and responding to risks of material misstatement
– Auditing accounting estimates, including fair value measurements

» October 2015, PCAOB issued a report encouraging auditors to take action in
response to risk assessment deficiencies identified in inspections. High rate of
deficiencies contributed to insufficiently supported audit opinion.
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

AS No. 8, Audit Risk
AS No. 9, Audit Procedures
AS No. 10, Supervision of the Audit Engagement
AS No. 11, Consideration of Materiality in Planning Performing an Audit
AS No. 12, Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement
AS No. 13, The Auditor’s Responses to the Risks of Material Misstatement
AS No. 14, Evaluating Audit Results
AS No. 15, Audit Evidence
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SEC
Recent Audit Firm Actions
 SEC sanctioned Deloitte & Touche LLP and eight other firms for various
brokerage related independence violations.

“Vigorous and comprehensive enforcement protects investors and reassures them that our
financial markets operate with integrity and transparency, and the Commission continues
that enforcement approach by bringing innovative cases, holding executives and
companies accountable for their wrongdoing sending clear warnings to would-be
violators.”
Mary Jo White, SEC Chair, Accounting Today News, October 22, 2015
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Case #1
 Firm & Individual
» Summary: Numerous and repeated violations of PCAOB and Auditing standards re: publication of audit
reports for five clients.
– Failed to receive adequate explanation for certain unusual related party transactions despite the
observance of several red flags, and whether such transactions were adequately disclosed.
– Failed to properly evaluate the appropriateness of accounting and disclosure of a discontinued operation.
– Despite an increase in revenue of approximately 700%, firm failed to appropriately plan and obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence.
– Failed to appropriately address a negative confirmation response which stated party did not know client.
– Failed to identify whether client’s accounting for equity issued in exchange for services was recorded in the
proper period based on reaching certain milestones.

» Auditing standards violated:
o AU 230, Due Professional Care in the Performance of Work
o AU 316, Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit
o AU 330, The Confirmation Process
o AU 334, Related Parties
o AS 8, Audit Risk
o AS 9, Audit Planning
o AS 12, Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement
o AS 13, The Auditor’s Responses to the Risks of Material Misstatement
o AS 14, Evaluating Audit Results
o AS 15, Audit Evidence
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Case #2
 Firm & Individual
» Summary: Failed to comply with auditing standards in connection with audits of two China based clients.
– U.S. firm hired Hong Kong-based engagement team to perform majority of audit work but failed to
appropriately supervise and review their work.
– Despite identifying possible manipulation of revenue as “high priority,” failed to identify and assess risk of
material misstatement of revenue at assertion level and failed to properly audit long-term contracts using
percentage-of-completion method.
– Failed to identify and test valuation of related party transactions, failed to consider illegal act.

» Auditing standards violated:
o AU 230, Due Professional Care in the Performance of Work
o AU 326/AS 15, Evidential Matter and Audit Evidence
o AU 342, Auditing Accounting Estimates
o AS 10, Supervision of the Audit Engagement
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Case #3
 Firm & Individual
» Summary: Failed to comply with audit standards in connection with its audits of three (two foreign) clients.
– Failed to properly plan and identify risk of material misstatement.
– Failed to properly audit and obtain sufficient evidence in regards to certain assets and liabilities.
– Failed to perform procedures regarding the valuation of equity issues in connection with multiple
transactions.
– Violated independence rules by serving as the lead partner for more than five consecutive years.
– Failed to maintain its documentation for the audits that it conducted.
– Failed to have a concurring review of audit.
» Auditing standards violated:
o PCAOB Rule 3502, Responsibility Not to Knowingly or Recklessly Contribute to Violations
o PCAOB Rule 3520, Auditor Independence
o AS 3, Audit Documentation
o AS 7, Engagement Quality Review
o AS 9, Audit Planning
o AS 11, Consideration of Materiality in Planning and Performing Audit
o AS 12, Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material Misstatement
o AS 14, Evaluating Audit Results
o AS 15, Audit Evidence
o AU 220, Independence
o AU 230, Due Professional Care in the Performance of Work
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Case #4


Firm & Individual
» Summary: SEC charged BDO with issuing false and misleading unqualified audit opinion.
– Five partners, including one national office representative.
– First non-independence case against a major audit firm since 2009.
» Client lacked adequate documentation regarding a $2 million certificate of deposit.
– After bank informed CFO it had no record of CD, audit firm was advised by CFO that CD was unaccounted for.
– Despite conflicting explanations provided by client management and audit firm’s request for an investigation, audit
firm issued an unqualified opinion.
– Audit firm failed to determine whether subsequent facts confirming misstatement impacted financial statements or
audit report.
– President claimed CD was to be assigned to unrelated party. Upon request, president only provided a one page
typewritten pdf listing amount, maturity date and interest rate.
– After issuing annual report, criminal complaint filed claiming CD never existed, that president signed false
confirmation to BDO, and CD used to conceal a loan default. President pled guilty.
– BDO failed to assess whether existing and new information had any impact on financial statements and audit
opinion.

» Auditing standards violated:
o AU 230, Due Professional Care in the Performance of Work
o AU 316, Consideration of Fraud in a Financial Statement Audit
o AU 326, Evidential Matter
o AU 333, Management Representations
o AU 334, Related Parties
o AU 561, Subsequent Discovery of Facts Existing at the Date of the Auditor’s Report
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SELECT AUDIT AREA CONSIDERATIONS

Risks of material misstatement

Due professional care
Audit evidence

Related parties
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Considerations in assessing alleged claims
Risks of Material Misstatement
 Auditing Standard No. 12, Identifying and Assessing Risks of Material
Misstatement
» Performing risk assessment procedures.
» Obtaining an understanding of the company and its environment.
» Obtaining an understanding of internal controls over financial
reporting.
» Performing analytical procedures.
» Engagement team discussion re: risks of material misstatement.
» Inquiries of audit committee, management and others within the
company.
» Revision of risk assessment.

December 9, 2015
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Considerations in assessing alleged claims
Due professional care
 AU 230, Due Professional Care in the Performance of Work
» Concerns what the independent auditor does and how well he or she
does it.
» Auditors should be assigned to tasks and supervised commensurate
with their level of knowledge, skill, and ability so that they can evaluate
the audit evidence they are examining.
» The auditor with final responsibility for the engagement should know, at
a minimum, the relevant professional accounting and auditing
standards and should be knowledgeable about the client.
» The auditor with final responsibility is responsible for the assignment of
tasks to, and supervision of, assistants.

» Auditors should exhibit professional skepticism while conducting the
audit. The auditor should not assume honesty or dishonesty and should
not accept less than persuasive evidence.
December 9, 2015
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Considerations in assessing alleged claims
Audit Evidence
 AU 326, Audit Evidence
» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence by performing audit procedures to
afford a reasonable basis for an opinion regarding the financial statements under
audit
(AU 326.01).
» Audit evidence:
− All the information used by the auditor in arriving at the conclusions on which
the audit opinion is based.
− Cumulative in nature
» Sufficiency is the measure of the quantity of audit evidence.
» Appropriateness is the measure of the quality of audit evidence, its relevance and
its reliability in providing support for, or detecting misstatements.
» The quantity of audit evidence needed is affected by the risk of misstatement and
also by the quality of such audit evidence. Accordingly, the sufficiency and
appropriateness of audit evidence are interrelated.
December 9, 2015
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Considerations in assessing alleged claims
Related Parties
 AU 334, Related Parties
» Accounting considerations.
» Determining the existence of related parties.
» Identifying and examining transactions.
» Disclosure.
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Michael Braverman
Managing Director, Dispute Consulting
Michael Braverman is a managing director in the New York office and a member of the Dispute
Consulting service line. Mike has nearly 30 years of experience providing litigation consulting,
auditing and merger and acquisition advisory services.
Mike focuses on white collar matters, U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) enforcement
actions, internal investigations, forensic accounting, purchase price and post M&A disputes,
accounting and auditor malpractice and assisting companies with complex accounting matters and
financial statement restatements. Mike has served as an expert in numerous matters including those
involving financial reporting and the application of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and
Generally Accepted Auditing Standards. He frequently consults on complex accounting, reporting,
and SEC matters.

Duff & Phelps, LLC

New York
+1 212 871 2000
michael.braverman@duffandphelps.co
m

Prior to joining Duff & Phelps, Mike was a managing director at Huron Consulting Group. Previously,
he was an audit partner and spent more than 20 years with PwC, Ernst & Young and Grant Thornton
providing audit, merger and acquisition advisory and other professional services as well as holding
practice leadership roles. During his career in public accounting, Mike led domestic and cross-border
teams on financial statement audits, public offerings/private placements, acquisition and divestiture
transactions, SEC matters, forensic investigations and other special projects. His clients included
Fortune 500 companies
as well as start-up ventures and private equity firms in a variety of industries, including
manufacturing, pharmaceutical, technology, entertainment, real estate and travel/hospitality.
Mike received his M.B.A. from Florida State University and his B.S. in accounting from the University
of Florida. He is a Certified Public Accountant, Certified Fraud Examiner, Certified Global
Management Accountant, a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
New York and Georgia State Societies of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Certified Fraud Examiners.
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Professional Liability Claims Against
Accountants
December 9, 2015
Emerging Claims and Defenses
A. Neil Hartzell
Neil.hartzell@leclairryan.com
And
Ben N. Dunlap
Ben.Dunlap@leclairryan.com
LeClairRyan

Contributory Negligence
 Contributory negligence can be used as a defense in accountant
malpractice acitons. In essence, it holds that plaintiff’s own
actions were the partial or entire cause of his claimed damages.
 Craig v. Anyon, 212 A.D. 55, 208 N.Y.S. 259 (N.Y.App.Div. 1925
(contributory negligence allowed where the plaintiff’s failure to
maintain adequate internal controls to supervise employees).
 Devco Premium Finance Co. v. North River Ins. Co., 450 So. 2d
1216, 1220 (Fla. Dist. Ct. App. 1984) (contributory negligence
defense allowed even though fraud was present).
 See generally Clark v. Rowe, 428 Mass. 339, 342 (1998) (“A
lawyer’s negligence may constitute a violation of an implied
condition of the contractual relationship between lawyer and client
but that does not foreclose the application of contributory fault
principles to the client’s claim”).
28

Estoppel
 Estoppel defenses are recognized in accountant
malpractice actions, including equitable estoppel,
judicial estoppel, and collateral estoppel. Generally,
the application of estoppel is a question of fact for the
jury.
 Jamison, Money, Farmer & Co. v. Standeffer, 678 So.
2d 1061 (Ala. 1996) (court allowed jury to consider
equitable estoppel defense where doctor had more
statements to accountant regarding insurance
premiums which could have been misleading and
caused the accountant to administer negligent advice
regarding potential tax liability).
29

Statute of Limitations
 Typically Governed by State Law
 Texas 2 year Statute of Limitations on certain
claims
• Weaver and Tidwell L.L.P. v. The Guarantee
Company of N. Am. USA, 427 S.W. 3d 559 (Tex.
App. Dallas 2014)
• 2 year statute of limitations bars Surety’s claims
against auditor, $2.6 million award reversed
30

Statute of Limitations
 RTR Technology Inc. v. Helming
2013 WL 388766 (1st Cir. Feb. 1, 2013)
1st Circuit affirmed summary judgment decision in
favor of accounting firm; finding that tort and
contract claims were barred under 3 year state law
period for tort claim rejecting plaintiff’s claim that
the discovery rule tolled statute; plaintiff only need
know she sustained appreciable harm
31

Statute of Limitations


Ames & Fisher Co., II LLP v.
McDonald 798 N.W.2d 557 (2011)
Under Minnesota law, cause of action accrues
and statute of limitations begins to run when
“some” damage occurs, here it began when tax
return filed that resulted in immediate
overpayment of taxes.

32

Statute of Limitations
 Morgan v. Fennimore
429 Fed. Appx. 606 (7th Cir. 2011)
Lottery winner’s accountant fails to file tax returns
for over 20 years. Continuing representation
doctrine does not toll statute where there alleged
act of malpractice and only general ongoing
professional relationship.
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Proximate Cause
RGH Liquidating Trust v. Deloitte & Touche LLP
NY Sup. Ct. June 6, 2013
 Reliance Group Holdings bond holders and Pension Benefit
Guaranty Corporation blamed DT for insurers collapse
 Claimed that DT reports grossly overstated insurer’s surplus thus
leaving regulators and creditors with no warning over Reliance’s
dire financial condition
 Plaintiff claimed that banks would have higher measurers to
prevent Reliances depletion of assets had Deloitte issued
accurance reports
 Court rejected that argument
 60 page decision granted DT’s Summary Judgment Motion
34

*

Proximate Cause
RGH Liquidating Trust v. Deloitte & Touche LLP
NY Sup. Ct. June 6, 2013
 After examining in detail the financial reports and claims, court
found the financial reports were not a substantial factor in
including Pension Benefit Guarantee Corporation to act as it and
that losses were mere speculation
 No proximate cause
 Allegations were based on mere speculation and mere possibility
of causation

35
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“Unclean Hands” or In Pari
Delicto Defense
 At a minimum, (i) the plaintiff, as compared to the
defendant, must bear substantially equal responsibility
for the wrong he seeks to redress and (ii) preclusion of
the suit must not interfere with the purposes of the
underlying law or otherwise contravene the public
interest.
 Nisselson v. Lernout, 469 F.3d 143, 152 (1st Cir.
2006).
 See also Choquette v. Isacoff, 836 N.E.2d at 332-33.
 See also Gray v. Evercore Restructuring L.P., No. 0611444-RWZ, 2007 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 78223, at *12 (D.
Mass. Sept. 19, 2007).
36
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“Unclean Hands” or In Pari
Delicto Defense








Under in pari delicto or “unclean hands” doctrine, a
court will refuse recovery, as a matter of public policy,
where the plaintiff is guilty of wrongful acts that are
greater than the accountant.
Ameriwood v. Arthur Andersen & Co., 961 F. Supp.
1078 (D. Mich. 1997) (in pari delicto defense raised
where the plaintiff made intentional misrepresentations
in preparation of its financial statements and
disclosures to accountant).
See also Dover v. Baker, Brown, Sharman & Parker,
859 S.W.2d 441 (Tex. Ct. App. 1993).
See also Choquette v. Isacoff, 65 Mass. App. Ct. 1, 6
(Mass. App. Ct. 2005) (applying in pari delicto in the
attorney-client context).
37
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In Pari Delicto
USACM Liquidity Trust v. Deloitte & Touche LLP 764 F.
Supp. 2d 1210 (2011)
Bankruptcy trustee stands in debtors shoes and an
equitable defense against the debtor is as good against
bankruptcy trustee as it is against debtor
Under Nevada law trustee’s claim barred by in pari
delicto doctrine
Accounting firm’s summary judgment motion granted
38
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“Unclean Hands” or In Pari
Delicto Defense
 A trustee in bankruptcy will generally be barred from
bringing a claim on behalf of an entity to which in pari
delicto would have been applicable had that entity brought
the claim itself. But see USACM case.
 See In re High Voltage Eng’g Corp., 363 B.R. 8, 24 (Bankr.
D. Mass. 2007) (“the in pari delicto defense must be
available to a defendant in an action by a bankruptcy
trustee whenever the defense would have been available in
an action by the debtor).
 See also Baena v. KPMG LLP, 453 F.3d 1, 14-19 (1st Cir.
2006) (affirming the district court’s decision to bar the
trustee’s claim in part because the company itself would
have been so barred).
39
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Elements of Unclean Hands
At a minimum the plaintiff, as compared to
the defendant

 Must bear substantially equal responsibility
for the wrong he seeks to redress.
 Preclusion of the suit must not interfere with
the purposes of the underlying law or
otherwise contravene the public interest
40
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Adverse Interest Exception
Exceptions
 The “adverse interest exception” will prevent In Pari Delicto from
operating to bar claims against an accountant where the wrongful
acts for which imputation is sought were completely adverse to
the plaintiff’s interests.
• See Baena v. KPMG LLP, 453 F.3d at 14-19 (affirming the district
court's decision to bar the trustee’s claim against accounting firms
where nothing in the complaint suggested that the company’s
managers were acting solely out of self-interest, and because the
idea that in pari delicto should be dispensed with where independent
directors in the company could have frustrated the fraud if aware of it
is foreign to traditional agency doctrine).
• See also Nisselson v. Lernout, 469 F.3d 143, 156 (1st Cir. 2006
41
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Adverse Interest Exception

Under principles of agency law, knowledge of an officer or agent is imputed
to the corporation when the agent obtains the knowledge while acting in
scope of employment and authority and such knowledge is not
communicated to the corporation.
Such knowledge will not be imputed when agent is acting on his own behalf
and not on behalf of corporation “Adverse Interest Exception”
Court said Nevada would require agent to totally abandon the principal’s
interest for the adverse intent exception to apply
USACM Liquidating Trust v. Deloitte & Touche LLP, 764 F. Supp. 1210
(2011)
42
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Adverse Interest Exception
 Even a short term benefit destroys complete
adversity
• "[a] fraud by top management to overstate
earnings, and so facilitate stock sales or
acquisitions, is not in the long-term interest of the
company; but, like price-fixing, it profits the
company in the first instance and the company is
still civilly and criminally liable . . .. [n]or does it
matter that the implicated managers also may have
seen benefits to themselves--that alone does not
make their interests adverse." Baena v. KPMG LLP,
453 F.3d 1, 7-8 (1st Cir. 2006).
43
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Exceptions
 If the parties were both in the wrong, but the
defendant’s actions were adverse to the
plaintiff’s interests, even only in the short term.
 The doctrine will not bar recovery by the
plaintiff, notwithstanding the plaintiff’s own
unclean hands.
 Similarly, in pari delicto will not bar claims
brought against corporate insiders.
44
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In Pari Delicto
 Kirshner v. KPMG, 15 N.Y.3d 446, 938 N.E.2d 941 912
N.Y.2d 508 (2010) New York Court of Appeals reaffirmed
doctrine of in pari delicto arising out of questions certified
and sent to it.
 Kirshner v. KPMG, 590 F.3d 1186 (2d Cir.2009) litigation
trustee claimed KPMG had aided and abetted Refco
insider fraud, hundreds of millions in uncollectable debt.
Among certified questions to NY state court was whether
adverse interest exception is satisfied by showing that
insiders intended to benefit themselves by misconduct.
Court answered “No”. Another question: whether
exception is available only where insiders’ misconduct
has harmed corporation. Court answered “Yes”.
45
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In Pari Delicto
 Teachers Retirement System of Louisiana v.
PWC LLP, 998 A.2d 280 (Del.2010) derivative
action where AIG shareholders claimed PWC
failed to detect fraud. New York court
answered yes to certified question whether in
pari delicto would bar a derivative claim under
New York law where a corporation sues its
outside auditor based on auditor’s failure to
detect fraud committed by corporation and
outside auditor did not knowingly participate in
fraud but instead failed to satisfy professional
standards in its audits.
46
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In Pari Delicto
In Pari Delicto
Grant Thornton LLP v. FDIC,
435 Fed. Appx. 188 (4th Cir. 2011)
 Among its rulings, court reviewed whether West Virginia state law
would bar in pari delicto defense against the FDIC as receiver of
a failed bank
 Court stated that West Virginia law would bar such a defense
where the receiver is acting to recover funds on behalf of the
public

47
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Deepening Insolvency

48

*

Definition
A number of jurisdictions have addressed
the issue of deepening insolvency, defined
as injury to “corporate property from the
fraudulent expansion of corporate debt and
prolongation of corporate life.”

49
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Legal scholars have debated whether
deepening insolvency constitutes:
 A direct cause of action against the corporation’s
directors, attorneys, and accountants, among
others.
 Is instead a theory of damages as measured by
the costs of the resulting financial distress (e.g.,
administrative and legal fees for bankruptcy.
 The amount of wrongfully-incurred unpayable
debt in actions founded on negligence or other
grounds.
50
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Deepening Insolvency


Deepening Insolvency proposes that even if an accountant’s error did not
cause lost profits, it may have caused the company to go deeper into debt
than it otherwise would have.
See Official Comm. of Unsecured
Creditors v. Foss, 371 B.R. 589, 623 (Bankr. D.N.H. 2007) (noting that
accounting firms have been sued under the theory). Deepening
insolvency has emerged, to varying degrees, as both (1) a theory of
damages upon which negligence based theories of accountant liability can
rest and (2) an independent cause of action.
Compare SI
Restructuring, Inc. v. Faulkner, No. 07-50872, 2008 U.S. App. LEXIS
13140, at *18 (5th Cir. Tex. June 20, 2008), In re Citx Corp., 448 F.3d
672, 678 (3d Cir. 2006) and Official Comm. of Unsecured Creditors v.
R.F. Lafferty & Co., 267 F.3d 340 (3d Cir. 2001) (rejecting deepening
insolvency as an independent form of damages) with In re Troll Comm.
LLC, 385 B.R. 110, 122 (Bankr. D. Del. 2008) (“[D]eepening insolvency
has been rejected as a valid cause of action or a theory of damages
under Delaware law.”). See also In re Flagship Health Care, Inc., 269
B.R. 721 (Bankr. S.D. Fla. 2001) (applying doctrine).
51
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Deepening Insolvency
• Massachusetts has not yet confirmed the
existence of a Deepening Insolvency cause of
action.
– See Boles v. Filipowski, 345 B.R. 426, 453 (Bankr.
D. Mass. 2006); Baena v. KPMG LLP, 389 F. Supp.
2d 112, 117 (D. Mass. 2005); Merrill Lynch, Pierce,
Fenner & Smith, Inc. v. Nickless, 324 B.R. 10, 13 (D.
Mass. 2005) (declining to resolve whether deepening
insolvency exists as a separate tort).
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Deepening Insolvency
• However, Massachusetts does accept the
notion that deepening insolvency may satisfy
the damages showing necessary to other
causes of actions. See Bowler v. Arthur
Andersen, LLP, 20 Mass. L. Rep. 85, at *45
(Mass. Super. Ct. 2005) (recognizing
deepening insolvency damages).
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Deepening Insolvency as a
Cause of Action
• Prolongation of corporate life
– See Official Comm. of Unsecured Creditors v. Foss, 371 B.R. 589, 622
(Bankr. D.N.H. 2007).
– See In re Adelphia Communs. Corp., 324 B.R. 492, 500 (Bankr.
S.D.N.Y. 2005) (noting that to be held liable for deepening insolvency, a
party must have been able to foresee that the debtor was being
operated for an improper purpose and that a complaint that fails to
allege that the insider defendants prolonged debtor’s life to
misappropriate the transfers received does not state a cause of action
for deepening insolvency).
– See also Official Committee of Unsecured Creditors v. R.F. Lafferty &
Co., 267 F.3d 340, 347 (3d Cir. 2001).
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Deepening Insolvency
• Courts recognizing Deepening Insolvency as a
cause of action have required that plaintiffs
show:
• Fraudulent expansion of corporate debt; and
– The fraud requirement of a cause of action for deepening insolvency
requires a plaintiff to allege and prove five elements: a representation of
material fact, falsity, scienter, reliance and injury. See Official Comm. of
Unsecured Creditors v. Foss, 371 B.R. 589, 623 (Bankr. D.N.H. 2007).
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Deepening Insolvency as a Cause
of Action
 Deepening Insolvency as Damages
• The Damages caused by Deepening Insolvency
may be measured as either:
– Costs of financial distress (administrative costs of
bankruptcy, declines in assets and profits from
reputation, etc.); or
– The amount of wrongfully incurred un-payable debt.
• See Florida Dept. of Ins. v. Chase Bank of Texas Nat'l
Ass'n, 274 F.3d 924, 935 (5th Cir. 2001).
• See also Corporate Aviation Concepts, Inc. v. Multi-Service
Aviation Corp., No. 03-0320, 2004 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 17154,
at *14 (E.D. Pa. Aug. 25, 2004).
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Business Judgment Rule
Many jurisdictions hold that the business
judgment rule shields the directors from
liability as long as their actions do not
otherwise constitute a breach of fiduciary
duty to the corporation, such as selfdealing.
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Business Judgment Rule
To hold otherwise would require the
directors to liquidate the insolvent
corporation for the benefit of its creditors,
rather than to uphold their fiduciary duties
to act in the best interests of the
corporation.
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Business Judgment Rule
 It would also assign liability for actions that,
but for the insolvency of the corporation,
would be within their duties of care and
loyalty to the corporation.
 Business decisions that plunge a formerly
solvent corporation into insolvency will not
expose directors to liability.
 so long as there is no breach of fiduciary
duty or other misdeed.
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Delaware Law Does Not
Recognize Deepening Insolvency
 Trenwich America Litigation Trust v. Ernst & Young
LLP, Del. Ch. 2006 (906 A.2d 168) if a board acting in
good faith and due diligence pursues a strategy to
increase corporation’s value but involves the
incurrence of additional debt, that does not give rise to
deepening insolvency claim rather directors are
protected by business judgment rule.
 See also In re Feeders North America, Inc., 405 B.R.
527 (Bankr. D. Rel. 2009).
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Cause of Action
 Some jurisdictions hold that any cause of
action for deepening insolvency is
subsumed within recognized causes of
action for:
 Breach of fiduciary duty, fraud, fraudulent
conveyance, and breach of contract and to
equitable injunctive relief, avoidance, or
appointment of a receiver.
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Fraud Element
 The fraud element itself contains five components: “a
representation of material fact, falsity, scienter, reliance and
injury.”
 Jurisdictions recognizing a cause of action for deepening
insolvency must do so under applicable state law.
 In re Sharp International Corp., 403 F.3d 43 (2d Cir. 2005)
ancillary issue; court limited duty owed by third party
lenders; found that lenders silence when new loan taken
out in face of borrower misconduct; no duty identified.
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Deepening Insolvency and
Accountant Concerns

63

Further Debt
As applied to accountants, deepening
insolvency may result from an accounting
error that causes a corporation to go into
further debt than it would have otherwise,
even if the error does not result in lost
profits.
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Foreseeability
Courts recognizing a cause of action for
deepening insolvency have held that the
party must have been able to foresee that
the debtor corporation was being operated
for an improper purpose.
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No Cause of Action
If liquidation is already inevitable, no cause
of action for deepening insolvency will lie.
But if a corporation is merely insolvent and
liquidation is not yet inevitable, liability may
exist.
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Zone of Insolvency
The critical analysis for the accountant,
therefore, is:
 To recognize when a client corporation
may be nearing the “zone of insolvency,”
when its liabilities exceed its assets.
 Scrutinize corporate activities closely to
determine whether they are consistent with
the directors’ fiduciary duties to the
corporation
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Zone of Insolvency
 Determine whether the corporation can
reasonably become solvent, or whether
liquidation is inevitable.
 Document your advice to your client to
avoid any inference of complicity in any
corporate act that may give rise to
allegations of breach of fiduciary duty by its
officers or directors.
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Emerging Claims and Defenses
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*

Should Accountants use
Arbitration Clauses
Pros
Quicker and cheaper
(sometimes)
If knowledgeable
panel avoids confused
juror or runaway
verdicts

Cons
Very limited appeal
rights
Fraud by panel
Panel deciding
matters not before it

 Health South Case
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Arbitration Health South Case /
In Pari Delicto
 Massive $2.6 billion fraud by Health South
 Criminal convictions
 Shareholder derivative action against Health
South auditor
• 3 member arbitration panel ruled that the fraud
knowledge of Health South officer, directors
imputed to Health South and barred claim
• Tucker v. E & Y, 2014 WL 2619860 (Ala. 2014)
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 Many of us learned about “metadata” when
our firms added software documents of
metadata when emailing files from Microsoft
Office. This development took place because,
before the scrubbing, a recipient of a
document could often view embedded data in
the document showing prior revisions. The
hidden metadata often would give insight into
the negotiations behind a business deal and
was very detrimental to those who unwittingly
sent metadata to another party.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 The IRS is now actively seeking metadata
in the context of tax audits – not just large
taxpayers but also small businesses and
individuals. Accountants need to be aware
of the creation of metadata, its implications
for audits, and the implications of turning
over client records that may include
metadata.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 In October 2011, in an internal legal
memorandum (ILM 201146017), IRS counsel
concluded that the IRS could obtain electronic
metadata in a routine audit and even issue a
summons for that data, if it were not provided
by the taxpayer voluntarily. In addition, the
memorandum stated that metadata may be
obtained by summons, even if the IRS already
has a copy of the electronic data sought,
without the metadata.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 The issue for accountants is that they are
often in the position of navigating the audit
process, including the production of
documents. Typically, routine business
records are not shielded by privilege,
especially with respect to a business entity.
However, the question of privilege for
metadata is more complex.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 Because metadata does not simply show a
business transaction, but also contains data on
who created a transaction and how that
transaction was created, personal privileges
may be applicable to metadata, such as a
potential Fifth Amendment privilege that could
be asserted by the person who created the
metadata. That aside, it is important for the
accountant to know and understand exactly
what information is being furnished, including
review of the metadata prior to its turnover.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 What does metadata reveal? It reveals the
who, how and when of transactions, and
that can have serious consequences.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 In United States v. Thorson, 633 F.3d 312 (4th
Cir. 2011), the taxpayer, Thorson, provided an
agreement purporting to show the partnership
entity’s purchase of cemetery lots. That
agreement was dated in 1995, but computer
metadata showed it was not created until
1998, after the IRS had requested documents
relating to the partnership. Thorson was
convicted of conspiring to defraud the United
States.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 A routine audit may create a potential
conflict for the accountant concerning
multiple entities, interests may be adverse.
Engagement letters need to be clear about
who the client is and should include
cautionary language on metadata.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 This will assist the CPA in defending a
claim for having turned over data
inappropriately. The CPA should advise
the client at the start of the audit about the
scope of the audit and the possibility that
the IRS would review metadata. That
conversation should be documented in the
CPA’s file.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 Even in the absence of criminal conduct,
metadata can be an issue with respect to the
imposition of penalties. The IRS has stepped
up its enforcement under Circular 230 as well
as an increased its imposition of negligence
penalties. Examiners are not told, in any case
where the taxpayer successfully raises a
reliance on a tax professional defense, to
make a referral. See Internal Revenue
Manual 20.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 What about scrubbing the metadata? It may be a
good idea for companies to routinely delete metadata,
either when transmitting the data, as many programs
do now, or as part of backing up data. However,
scrubbing the records, could in certain circumstances,
constitute obstruction of justice, so companies must
tread carefully.
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Recent Developments in IRS
and Metadata
 The IRS cannot mandate that a company
maintain its records in a specified format.
However, the IRS can demand original
records, and if those records contain
metadata, then the record turned over
must include the metadata, if the IRS asks
for it.
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Recent Developments in Claims
Against Accountants in Securities Law
Loss Causation
 Loss causation in its simplest definition is established if a
pleading alleges that that subject of the fraudulent
statement or omission was the cause of the actual loss
suffered. Lentell v. Merrill Lynch Co., Inc., 396 F.3d
161,173 (2d Cir.2005).
 Amorosa v. Ernst & Young LLP, No. 09-5270-cv (L) (2d
Cir.Feb. 2, 2011) affirmed the dismissal of claims that
AOL’s auditor, Ernst & Young, violated Section 11 of the
Securities Act and Sections 10(b) and 14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act by making alleged
misrepresentations in a “clean” audit opinion.
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Recent Developments in Claims
Against Accountants in Securities Law
 The plaintiff did not plead loss causation in
connection with his Sections 10(b) and
14(a) claims. The plaintiff did not identify
any purported corrective disclosures that
implicated Ernst & Young’s challenged
audit opinions and, did not connect AOL’s
alleged fraud to the auditor.
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Securities
 Isakov v. Ernst & Young Ltd.
2012 WL 951897 (D.Conn. March 19, 2012)
 10(b) claim dismissed where scienter not adequately pled.
 Scienter requirement subject to heightened pleading
requirement of Fed. R. 9(b) under the PSLRA 15 U.S.C. §
78u-4.
 Failure to make scienter allegations with particularity fatal to
claim.
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Securities/Loss Causation
Hubbard v. BankAtlantic Bankcorp, Inc.,
688 F.3d 713 (11th Cir. 2012)







Private securities fraud class action, 10(b) of 34 Act against bank holding
company
Claims that Bank failed to adequately disclose concerns over loan
portfolio and thus artificially inflated its stock price
Loss causation does not require proof that the fraud was the sole cause
of the securities decline in value
But, plaintiff must show “substantial” or significant contributory cause
Damages only recoverable that are actually caused by misrepresentation
Upheld trial court’s entry of judgment for bank because plaintiff’s expert
did not account for effects of collapse of Florida real estate market
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Securities
 Isakov v. Ernst & Young Ltd.
2012 WL 951897 (D.Conn. March 19, 2012)
Given high bar for pleading auditor scienter, allegations of
violations of GAAS or other best practices without a
corresponding fraudulent intent are insufficient to state a claim
against an accountant.
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Securities
Meridian Horizon Fund LP v. KPMG, 487 Fed. Appx. 636 (2012)

 Madoff feeder fund sued its auditor for failure to conduct audits of the
funds in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards
and knowing and recklessly issued false and misleading audit
opinions.
 Court upheld dismissal
 Plaintiffs’ allegations that auditors ignored red flags of Madoff fraud
and conducted an inadequate audit of the funds were insufficient to
support a strong interference of scienter.
 For recklessness by a non-fiduciary accountant to satisfy securities
fraud scienter, such recklessness must be conduct that is highly
unreasonable, representing an extreme departure from standards of
ordinary care.
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Securities

Meridian Horizon Fund LP v. KPMG, 487 Fed. Appx. 639 (2012)

 Such recklessness “must in fact, approximate an actual intent
to aid in the fraud being perpetrated by the audited company”
 Auditors were responsible for auditing its client’s funds, not
Madoff’s Investment Securities
 So called red flags were inherent risks in Madoff funds, not the
feeder fund entities
 Recklessness must “approximate an actual intent to aid in the
fraud being perpetrated by the audited company.”
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Securities
In Re Longtop Financial Technologies Limited
Securities Litigation 11-CV-03658 S.D.N.Y. (April 8, 2013)
 Claims Under 10(b), 10b-5 Against Bank Holding Company
 Unqualified Audit Opinions; clients reported strong financial
results but those results inflated by fraud
 Auditor Deloitte Touche (“DT”) resigned
 Claim that DT was aware of internal control deficiencies and “red
flags” that gave rise to significant risk of management fraud
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Securities
In Re Longtop Financial Technologies Limited
Securities Litigation 11-CV-03658 S.D.N.Y. (April 8, 2013)
 Heightened pleading standard under Rule 9(b) and PSLRA
 Allegations regarding scienter must be plead specifically
 Showing that defendants had motive and opportunity to commit
fraud or strong circumstantial evidence of conscious misbehavior
or recklessness
• Concrete and personal belief to the individual defendants resulting
from fraud
• Conscious behavior by defendant
• Extreme departure from ordinary care
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Securities
In Re Longtop Financial Technologies Limited
Securities Litigation 11-CV-03658 S.D.N.Y. (April 8, 2013)






Claims that Bank failed to adequately disclose concerns over loan
portfolio and thus artificially inflated its stock price
Loss causation does not require proof that the fraud was the sole cause
of the securities decline in value
But, plaintiff must show “substantial” or significant contributory cause
Damages only recoverable that are actually caused by misrepresentation
Upheld trial court’s entry of judgment for bank because plaintiff’s expert
did not account for effects of collapse of Florida real estate market
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Securities
In Re Longtop Financial Technologies Limited
Securities Litigation 11-CV-03658 S.D.N.Y. (April 8, 2013)
Failure of non-fiduciary accounting firm to identify problems with
internal controls and account practices does not constitute
recklessness
 So deficient as to amount to no audit at all
 Court found no recklessness by DT
 Proper documentation of steps in evaluating various internal
documents and identifying internal control weaknesses
 Claims dismissed
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In re: MF Global Holdings
Ltd Investment Litigation


Commodities firm used customer funds for its own investments



Customers sue Auditor for negligence and breach of fiduciary duty



Based on failure to detect fraudulent transfers of customer funds



In pari delicto barred claims



On Appeal, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals affirmed on May 22, 2015, ruling that the
allegation that a corporation that engages in malfeasance cannot sue outside accountants
who negligently failed to detect or prevent that malfeasance.



The court reaffirmed New Yorks privity doctrine



The customer Plaintiff’s were not “known parties” who PWC should have known would rely
on its statements



Cert. requested

Related case
MF Global As Plan Administrators v. PWC 2014 WL 3402602 (SDNY) Must prove auditor
damages caused by erroneous accounting advice
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Recent Developments in Claims
Against Accountants in Securities Law
Reliance
 In re Interbank Funding Corp. Sec. Litig. No.09-7167
(D.C. Cir. Dec. 28, 2010) affirmed the denial of a
proposed amended complaint alleging that Interbank’s
auditor violated Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange
Act. The proposed amended complaint did not
adequately plead reliance nor was plaintiff entitled to a
presumption of reliance.
 Plaintiff alleged that Interbank was a Ponzi scheme, and
that the auditor violated Section 10(b) by stating
affirmatively that Interbank’s financial statements were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.
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Hecht v. Andover Associates Management
Corp., 978 N.Y.S. 2d 650 (2014)

 Derivitative claims v. auditor of feeder fund to
Madoff
 Denied motion to dismiss but said Plaintiff would
have to prove it would have recouped investment if
earlier discovery of fraud by auditor
 January 2005, Summary Judgment denied where
engagement letter said it would include tests of
documentary evidence from select third parties and
issue of fact whether creditor did so sufficiently to
uncover fraud
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Recent Madoff Fraud Cases
Against Auditors
Sacher v. Beacon Associates Management Corporation, 980 N.Y.S.
2d 121 (2014)
Investment fund invested in Madoff firm
Derivitive Action
Lack of Standing overruled as plaintiffs sufficiently plead futility of
demand
Court said plaintiff had sufficiently plead that auditor had a duty to
discover fraud
Since no allegation that BAMC intentionally provided misleading
information in pari delicto barred
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Securities
In Re Puda Coal Securities Inc. et. al. 2014 WL 2915 880
(S.D. N.Y. 2014)
Investors in Puda Coal sued auditor for ’09 and ’10
financial statements
Claim arose out of claim that Puda owned 90% of
Shanzi Coal but that was not true
Audit reports PCOAB Standards
Court said mere evidence of GAAS or GAAP violation
insufficient
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Securities
In re: Puda
Plaintiff’s expert was from Hong Kong; not
qualified to issue opinion on PCAOB
standards
Disqualified
Summary judgment granted, lack of
evidence re: scienter
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Securities
In re: Bear Stearns Co Inc. Securities, 995 F. Supp. 2d 291
(S.D.N.Y. 2014)
Claims against auditor dismissed
Securities Clause 5 yr. Statute of repose
• tolling doctrine rejected
Sec. 18 claim one year statute of limitation
Failure to plead reliance
For fraud, each year audit separate engagement / 2 yr
statute of limitations

101

*

Recent Developments in Claims
Against Accountants in Securities Law
Standing Issues
 In Lewin v. Lipper Convertibles, L.P., No 03 Civ.
1117 (RMB) (S.D.N.Y. Nov. 17, 2010) investors
in a bankrupt limited partnership sued the
partnership’s auditors for violations of Section
10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act based on
claims that the auditor issued a false and
misleading unqualified audit opinion.
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Recent Developments in Claims
Against Accountants in Securities Law
 Even in cases of alleged corporate fraud, a
decrease in the value of stock is not an injury
that confers standing to sue upon an individual
stockholder.
 Plaintiffs lacked standing to assert direct claims
against the auditor because they did not
demonstrate that their injuries were separate
and distinct from the limited partnership’s
injuries.
 A diminution in the value of shares in itself was
insufficient to establish standing to assert
direct claims.
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Audit Firm Liable in Madoff Feeder Fund Claim Future Select
Portfolio Management, Inc. et al. v. Ernst & Young LLP
Case No. 10-2-30732 State of Washington







A November, 2015 jury verdict found auditor liable for
failure to properly audit a Madoff Feeder Fund
Defense was no audit could have detected the
sophisticated Madoff Ponzi Scheme
Plaintiff claims the audit firm ignored red flags, for
example, could have learned Madoff audit firm was a
one man firm not qualified to conduct audits
Claimed audit firms should have checked that assets
were real
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Recent Developments in Claims
Against Accountants in Securities Law
Madoff Feeder Fund
 In an 82 page opinion In re Beacon Assocs. Litig.,
No. 09 Civ. 777 (LBS) (S.D.N.Y. Oct. 5, 2010) the
U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New
York dismissed claims that the auditor of a Madoff
feeder fund, violated Section 10(b) of the Securities
Exchange Act because it purportedly failed to
investigate red flags.
 Numerous claims against various defendants who
were associated with the Beacon fund arising out of
losses sustained the Madoff Ponzi schemes.
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Recent Developments in Claims
Against Accountants in Securities Law
 The court stated that the standard for
pleading auditor scienter is “demanding.”
 Recklessness on the part of a nonfiduciary accountant to satisfy securities
fraud scienter must be conduct that
approximates an actual intent to aid in
the fraud being perpetuated by the
audited company.
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Recent Developments in Claims
Against Accountants in Securities Law
Beacon Associates
 The auditor scienter in conformity with Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act Standard – which
requires a heightened pleading stand for 10(b)
claims must allege that accounting practices so
deficient that audit amounted to no audit at all or that
accounting judgments that were made were such
that no reasonable accountant would have made the
same decisions on the same facts.
 Here the allegations were that auditors violated
GAAP and GAAS by failing to corroborate Madoff
account statements and ignored red flags.
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Recent Developments in Claims
Against Accountants in Securities Law
Beacon Associates
 But, auditor must have been aware of red
flags or so obvious that auditor must have
known can support inference of intent; here
no such allegation.
 Merely alleging access to information by
which it could have discovered fraud not
sufficient.
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Private Securities Litigation and
Reform Act of 1995


“In any private action arising under this title [15
USCS §§ 78a et seq.] in which the plaintiff may
recover money damages only on proof that the
defendant acted with a particular state of mind,
the complaint shall, with respect to each act or
omission alleged to violate this title [15 USCS
§§ 78a et seq.], state with particularity facts
giving rise to a strong inference that the
defendant acted with the required state of
mind.” 15 USCS § 78u-4.
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Private Securities Litigation and
Reform Act of 1995


See Greebel v. FTP Software, Inc., 194 F.3d 185,
201 (1st Cir. Mass. 1999) (holding that, despite
much debate, the PSLRA did not change the
substantive definition scienter). Thus, evidence of
conscious misbehavior, recklessness, and motive
and opportunity, may in some circumstances
support the necessary strong inference. See id. at
196 (declining to adopt the popular Second Circuit
pleading standard and noting that the First Circuit
has opted to analyze the particular facts alleged in
each individual case to determine whether the
allegations are sufficient to support scienter.)
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Private Securities Litigation and
Reform Act of 1995


See Tellabs, Inc. v. Makor Issues & Rights, Ltd., 127
S. Ct. 2499, 2504 (U.S. 2007) (“It does not suffice
that a reasonable fact finder plausibly could infer
from the complaint's allegations the requisite state of
mind. Rather, to determine whether a complaint's
scienter allegations can survive threshold inspection
for sufficiency, a court . . . must engage in a
comparative evaluation; it must consider, not only
inferences urged by the plaintiff . . . but also
competing inferences rationally drawn from the facts
alleged.”).
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Private Securities Litigation and
Reform Act of 1995


Aiding and Abetting

•

For purposes of any action brought by the Securities and
Exchange Commission under section 21(d) of the SEC Act of
1934, any person that knowingly provides substantial assistance
to another person in violation of a provision of the Act, or of any
rule or regulation issued under the Act, shall be deemed to be in
violation of such provision to the same extent as the person to
whom such assistance is provided. See 15 U.S.C. 78t.

–
–

See generally SEC v. Peretz, 317 F. Supp. 2d 58 (D. Mass. 2004).
See SEC v. KPMG LLP, 412 F. Supp. 2d 349, 383 (S.D.N.Y. 2006)
(finding that liability for aiding and abetting under 15 U.S.C. 78t does
not attach to behavior that is reckless, but not knowing). See also
SEC v. Johnson, 530 F. Supp. 2d 325, 332 (D.D.C. 2008)
See Wright v. Ernst & Young Llp, 152 F.3d 169, 176 (2d Cir. N.Y.
1998) (noting that §78t does not create a private cause of action).

–
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Private Securities Litigation and
Reform Act of 1995
•

See 15 USCS § 78j-1; In re Cardinal Health, Inc. Sec. Litigs., 426
F. Supp. 2d 688, 763-764 (S.D. Ohio 2006)(“GAAS and GAAP
represent the industry standard for measuring the performance of
an examination by an accountant.”); SEC v. KPMG LLP, 412 F.
Supp. 2d 349, 388 (S.D.N.Y. 2006) (“the independent public
accountant to which the unamended provision refers is properly
considered to be the accountant who certified or who was retained
to certify an issuer's financial statements. . . . Although such an
accountant could be a natural person, in the case of a company
traded on a national securities exchange, it is much more likely to
be an accounting firm.”); SEC v. Solucorp Indus., 197 F. Supp. 2d
4, 11 (S.D.N.Y. 2002) (“the statute does not require that the auditor
become aware of illegal acts in order for the section to apply.”).
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Recent Developments With
Auditor Implications
In 2011 the Financial Accounting Standards Board wanted to bring
U.S closer to international accounting rules:
 Wanted more disclosure
 Starting this quarter companies reporting financials must more
prominently display “comprehensive income”
 Incorporates both net income and an assortment of gains and
losses that weren’t included in it
 Must be included in same Table or Net Income or be put in its
own table
 Companies typically disclose comprehensive income in a
“changes in shareholder equity table”
 This table consists of net income plus items excluded from net
income such as changes to pension plan assets
 Potential for claims arising from increased reporting requirements
114

*

Recent Bank Fraud Case
Brought By SEC
 In April 2011, it was reported that SEC charged
Franklin Bank Corporation’s former chief
executives, its CEO and CFO of fraudulently
concealing the deterioration of the bank’s loan portfolio
and had inflated its earnings in the third and fourth
quarters of 2007.
 Bank holding company declared bankruptcy in 2008
 SEC alleges accounting “tricks” and inaccurate
disclosures misled investors into believing that
Franklin Bank was outperforming other banks during
financial crisis.
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Recent Bank Fraud Case
Brought By SEC
 SEC alleges Bank had an aggressive loan
modification policy
 By modifying loans Bank transferred nonperforming loans into performing loans
 Result was concealment of $24.5 million in
non-performing single-family residential loans
and residential construction loans.
 By doing so SEC claims Bank overstated its
third quarter income and earnings by 317%
and 77%
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Recent Bank Fraud Case
Brought By SEC





Implications for Bank’s Auditors
What was Reviewed
Scope of Review
In what manner disclosed by Bank
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Aiding and Abetting
 Mundinger Trust v. The Lamson & Sessions
Co., Case No. 08cv-01266-CAB (N.D. Ohio
12/22/10) Trustee claimed accounting firm
advised company concerning distributions to
company’s principals and by doing so
company rendered insolvent. Court found that
even if Ohio recognized aiding and abetting
claim it would be barred by in pari delicto and
further there was no proximate cause.
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Privity
 Cost Art Industries v. KPMG, 3A.3d 562,
416 N.J. Supra. 76 (N.J. App. 2010) liability
against auditor upheld. KPMG owed a duty
to third parties under N.J. privity statute.
Court rejected breach of duty and
misstatement arguments finding that
misstatements in financial statements can
be material even if not quantified.
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Third Party Claims
 Under Kansas Law, adequate third party
complaint against auditor
• F & DG of Maryland v. Kramer & Ass., 2014 WL
2557921 (D. Kan.)
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Colonial Bank/Bank Audits
FDIC v. Pricewaterhouse
12-00957 (M.D. Ala.)
 Arises out of Colonial Bank’s $1 billion loss in Taylor Bean
Mortgage Corp.
 Bank’s failure arose from $1 billion in fraudulent mortgages
purchased from Taylor Bean
 Sued internal auditors Crowe Horwarth and external auditor PwC;
claim they should have learned of fraud perpetrated by bank’s
largest client well before federal 2009 raid on mortgage
company’s headquarters
 Malpractice, gross negligence, breach of contract, negligent
misrepresentation
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Bar to Imputation Defenses
FDIC v. Pricewaterhouse
12-00957 (M.D. Ala.)
 At issue in case is whether state or federal law
determine whether FDIC as Receiver of the failed
bank, enjoys special protection from imputation based
defenses
 Certain state law cases hold those defenses not
available against a receiver
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Engagement Letters
FDIC v. Pricewaterhouse
12-00957 (M.D. Ala.)
 Crowe claims its engagement letters prohibit
recovery of consequential or exemplary damages
 Crowe says engagement letter said no third parties
could rely on its auditing services for holding
company
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Colonial Bank
 In re: Colonial Bancgroup Inc. Securities
Litigation, 2014 WL 1259658 (M.D. Ala)
• Auditor’s securities law motion to dismiss granted
– Failure to plead loss causation, scienter and material
misstatement by auditor

124

*

Colonial Bank
 FDIC v. PWC, No. 2:12-cv-957
• Motion to dismiss denied where claim that auditors
should have reasonably anticipated that fraud
scheme would continue if services were faulty and
failed to detect

 Colonial Bancgroup Inc. v. PWC, No. 2:11 cv746
• Motion to dismiss denied re: in pari delicto and lack
of proximate cause, among other things
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REFCO CASES





Insiders at former brokerage firm were accused of obtaining and using customer
assets to fund day to day operations; firm went bankrupt
Trustee sued Mayer Brown and Grant Thornton aiding and abetting security fraud
Grant Thornton accused of knowing about firm’s precarious financial state and
issuing reports to the contrary
Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss granted in 2010
•
•



In 2013, days before oral argument scheduled before the Second Circuit, law firm
settled for undisclosed amount
•






Fraud not pled with particularity
Appeal

Grant Thornton settled in September 2012

Know your client
Was it so big that no one thought there could be fraud
Was only one person or small group supplying information to auditors
Trust but verify
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
Matter # 1




Grant Thornton v. OCC, 514 F.3d 1328 (DC Circuit 2008). Highlights
problems that arise when an accountant ignores Generally Accepted
Auditing Standards.
Unqualified 1999 audit issused by Grant Thornton performed of Key
Stone, a small West Virginia bank, was conducted pursuant to generally
accepted auditing standards.
Bank sought to increase its revenues, launching an ambitious loan
securitization program. The Bank bought sub-prime or high loan to value
loans from large originators throughout the country, it then pooled these
loans with loans that had originated itself; bundled the loans into
securities and then sold them to institutional investors. Bank hired asset
servicers to collect the principal, interest and penalties on the loans and
issue monthly checks of interest income to Keystone. Before 1999, the
Bank’s assets were approximately $100 million, after, the assets looked
like they had skyrocketed to $1 billion.
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
 Not surprisingly, in August 1999, the OCC examiners
uncovered Keystone’s fraud, that Bank had inflated its
interest income by nearly $98 million and its assets by
$450 million dollars. They discovered that the $450
million dollars in assets that Keystone claimed
belonged to it were, in fact, owned by another Bank.
The scheme masked that the Bank had been insolvent
since 1996; several members of Keystone
management were convicted of felonies, falsifying
bank records, loan servicer reports and remittances,
as well as lying to auditors and regulators. The Bank
was ultimately closed by the OCC.
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
 Examiners from the Office of Control of Currency (“OCC”)
scrutinized the Bank’s records periodically from 1992 through
1999, found issues with accuracy of the Bank’s statements and
as a result of the overall condition of management quality the
bank agreed to retain a nationally recognized independent
accounting firm to audit the Bank’s mortgage operations and
financial statement accuracy.
 In 1998 the Bank hired Grant Thornton to conduct the agreed
upon external audit. In April 1999 Grant Thornton issued its audit
opinion. The opinion acknowledged the firms duty was to “obtain
reasonable assurance about whether Keystone’s financial
statements for 1997 and 1998 were free of material
misstatement” and, in effect the auditors went on to state it had
fond such assurance. In other words they had reasonable
assurance that the financial statements were free of material
misstatement.
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
 The OCC initiated an administrative proceeding through the
Financial Institution’s Reform and Recovery Enforcement Act
from 1989, otherwise known as FIRREA, claiming that Grant
Thornton in auditing Keystone’s financial statements had
“recklessly engaged in an unsafe or unsound practice in
conducting Keystone’s affairs.” The Government’s evidence
showed, among other things, that Grant Thornton had relied on
oral representations as to Keystone’s ownership of approximately
$236 million of the $450 million at issue, even in the face of
written communications suggesting otherwise. Following some
additional proceedings, Grant Thornton was fined and appealed
the fine. The Court vacated the sanctions because it could
not be determined that the independent accountant had
participated in the bank fraud.
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
 After purchasing the mortgages with funds provided by
Keystone and arranging for servicing and securitization,
Keystone included the mortgages on its books as assets,
despite the fact that United owned them.
 A number of facts were made known to the auditors
before the audit. That the growth, heavy involvement in
securitizations, heavy security risk, under capitalization,
and the Bank had been downgraded by regulators.
Senior management was being investigated by the FBI
for illegal kickbacks. Keystone had apparently claimed
ownership of some assets that were clearly not its. Call
reports were being manipulated.
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
 Some startling facts.
 After the audit began, the auditors attempted to verify the size of
the mortgage portfolio which was reported to be approximately
$227 million and $242 million by the two different servicers. In
reality, however, the first servicer had only serviced $14 million
and the second servicer had only serviced $6.3 million. The
auditors asked the servicers to verify in writing the size of the loan
portfolios and one of them verified without explanation that it
serviced a figure less than 1/38th of the $242 million previously
reported. Later there was a telephone call from one of the
servicers saying they had located another pool of “Keystone
mortgages worth approximately $236 million” but then
subsequently sent an e-mail saying that the mortgages were
owned by “Investor 406.” Investor 406 was a different bank.
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
 Notwithstanding what the court stated was this titantic
discrepancy, the auditors did not request written
clarification as required under GAAS; instead relying
on that earlier telephone call, the auditor (incredibly)
reported that the $242 million was the accurate
number. The auditors made no effort to independently
verify the accuracy of the figures as they were required
to do under their own internal audit manual. It turned
out that the $98 million in interest income also did not
exist. This could have been easily verified by
requesting monthly remittances that the bank had
received from its loan servicers.
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
 Nor did the auditors even attempt to determine
whether the reported interest income was deposited in
the Bank’s account, which they could have found out
by reviewing the general ledger. Remarkably, the
audit was an unqualified audit opinion, stating that the
audit had been conducted pursuant to GAAS and that
the auditor had obtained reasonable assurance that
the Bank’s financial statements were free from
material misstatements. Four months later, fraud was
discovered by OCC examiners and the Bank ultimately
collapsed.
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
 The lessons here are many, when red flags are going
up verify.
 You ignore them at your peril
 It seems obvious relying on telephone calls and not
written verification
 Suspect auditors may have been lulled by size of bank
and what seemed to be sophistication on investments
 Merely because you are auditing a larger entity does
not limit or mean that fraud may not be taking place
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Risks Arising From Bank Audits
Matter # 2









Grant Thornton LLP v. FDIC, 435 Fed. Appx. 188 (4th Cir. 2011) FDIC as receiver
of failed bank brought claims against Grant Thornton alleging that Auditor was
negligent
After bench trial FDIC awarded $25 million
Found that auditor violated GAAS by failing to supervise or participate in
confirmation responses
Found that if auditors had exercised due care fraud would have been discovered
Court placed significance on fact that auditor hired to perform audit at insistence
of federal regulators
Found that failure to detect fraud was proximate cause of damages substantially
Upheld $25 million award, remanded to recalculate a settlement credit FDIC
obtained from Bank’s law firm
Rejected imputation, in pari delicto and corporate fault as under state law such
defenses do not apply when plaintiff is receiver
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Recent SEC Enforcement Action
 May 9, 2012 SEC began enforcement proceeding
against Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“DTT”)
 DTT is a public accounting firm registered with the
Public Accounting Oversight Board. DTT is located in
Shanghai, The Peoples Republic of China.
 DTT is a Chinese member firm of Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu Limited, a U.K. private company (“Global
Firm”).
 SEC asked for audit work papers pursuant to Sec.
106(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.
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Recent SEC Enforcement Actions
 SEC served Deloitte LLP, a U.S. member firm of the
Global Firm with a subpoena concering Global Firm’s
audit of an issuer client.
 Global Firm would not produce audit papers because it
believes by doing so will breach Chinese privacy laws
with possible criminal penalties.
 SEC now charges Global Firm with violations of
Sarbanes-Oxley Act Sec. 106(e) for failure to turn over
audit papers.
 SEC has ordered a public hearing.
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Recent SEC Enforcement Actions
 SEC says it unsuccessfully attempted to
obtain audit work papers through
international work sharing mechanism.
 How do firms with international operations
deal with these issues?
 Who should have burden to make a request
to Chinese authorities?
 Declaratory order?
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Recent SEC Enforcement Actions
2015 Update
On December 3, 2012, SEC instituted Administrative
Proceedings against D&T Shanghai and several other
firms for violation of Sarbanes-Oxley §106
SEC was negotiating with China Securities
Commission
Offers of Settlement Accepted by SEC $500,000 fines
each
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SEC UPDATE
 SEC continues to pursue claims arising from deficient
audits
 September 2015 settled with National audit firm for $2.1
million for ignoring red flags
 Audit firm initially identified issue and requested
independent investigation but then withdrew request
 Fraud ultimately discovered
 Also brought separate suit against a former US Attorney
who was chairman of the audited company
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SEC Updates
 On a December 2, 2015 press release, the SEC
announced a $1.5 million forfeiture and $3 million
penalty against Grant Thorntonfrom deficient audits of
Assisted Living Concepts
 Auditor ignored red flags
 Among other things, ALC claimed it had agreement with
lessor to meet lease covenants by treating ALC
employees and other new residents as occupants of
facilities
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PCAOB UPDATES
 November 12, 2015 Release
 Audit Firm Liable and Penalized when Audit Firm Twice
Failed to Timely Disclose Certain Reportable Events on
PCAOB Forms Special Report
 Arose From Proceedings Instituted By Spanish Auditor
Overnight Authority
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Defenses to Claims Against
Accountants
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A. Neil Hartzell
One International Place
Eleventh Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02110
617.502.8209
neil.hartzell@leclairryan.com

Mr. Hartzell focuses his practice on representing both plaintiffs and defendants in complex civil litigation matters
including commercial disputes, securities litigation and investigations, accounting, directors and officers, business
torts, trade secrets, civil RICO, insurance coverage, including environmental, medical device litigation, class actions,
real estate, contract actions, aviation, workplace and employment related matters, including discrimination claims,
construction, whistleblower litigation and environmental including Chapter 21E and CERCLA claims, banking litigation,
creditors and debtors in bankruptcy proceedings, claims involving accountants, attorneys, design professionals as well
as governmental investigations. He also represents parties in loan workouts, including forbearance agreements, loan
sales, related litigation and bankruptcy.
Mr. Hartzell served as lead counsel in major cases involving environmental contamination, bank fraud, professional
liability, securities, directors and officers, toxic tort, product liability, personal injury, class actions, and commercial
disputes. He has appeared before state and municipal boards and agencies and represented witnesses before federal
and state grand juries. As trial counsel, he has obtained multi-million dollar verdicts, some of the largest in
Massachusetts, in the area of environmental contamination. Recent decisions include obtaining summary judgment in
different cases involving federal qui tam litigation, professional liability, discrimination and claims of interference with
contractual relations. He has successfully mediated numerous disputes, including legal and accounting malpractice
and professional liability claims. He also has extensive experience representing various entities, including the Program
Manager, in connection with the Central Artery/Tunnel Project, one of the most complex construction projects in U.S.
history. He has been selected for inclusion in The Best Lawyers in America® 2013-2015 editions in the area of
Commercial Litigation.
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Ben N. Dunlap
One International Place
Eleventh Floor
Boston, Massachusetts 02110
617.502.8205
Ben.Dunlap@leclairryan.com

Ben Dunlap focuses his practice on complex civil litigation. He represents accountants, financial
institutions, construction and design firms, insurance companies, and other businesses in a wide
variety of matters, including commercial disputes, lender liability claims, professional liability claims,
and insurance coverage matters. Mr. Dunlap is an experienced litigator who represents clients in
court, administrative proceedings and appeals, arbitration, and mediation. He regularly appears in
the state and federal courts in Massachusetts, and has been admitted pro hac vice in a number of
other courts around the country.
He was a Judicial Clerk at the Honorable David A. Mills Massachusetts Appeals Court and has been
recognized by Law & Politics Magazine as a Massachusetts Super Lawyers "Rising Star" for
Professional Liability: Defense, 2009-2014
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Thank You.
A. Neil Hartzell
neil.hartzell@leclairryan.com
Ben N. Dunlap
ben.dunlap@leclairryan.com
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